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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Neary-Hopcroft Adobe is a story-and-a-half structure of
distinctly Mission Period architecture that measures 23 feet in width
and 130 feet in length. Constructed of adobe on a quarried limestone
base, there is some evidence that it was once a larger building that
consisted of consecutive units in excess of the two remaining portions
that share a five-foot common wall.

The half-story was added at a later date, but sometime before
1853, when the Moasonic Lodge of Santa Cruz was organized in the build-
ing's upper quarters. An outside staircase is attached to the Hopcroft
portion, and there was also . one at the western, or Neary, half of the
building. Doors and windows led off a balcony that ran the length of
the rear of the building.

The Neary side has a center hall with a staircase leading to the
upper floor that reflects typical 19th century wood-turning. The floors
in this part of the building are planked and laid directly upon packed
earth. The rooms appear to have undergone little change through the
adobe's long history, with the exception of the parlor, entrance hall,
and a middle room, which have gilt moldings, wallpapers and stencilling
that are distinctly Victorian. Both sides have been continuously occu-
pied; however, the exterior and interior of the Hopcroft section have
been better cared for.

The State of California purchased the adobe in 1957, but it was
not until 1965 that any preservation work was begun on the Neary side.
At that time, the roof was replaced, a concrete bond installed, and the
west end was surfaced with wood. Before this work was completed, the
interior of the building suffered soaking by heavy rains, which caused
considerable damage. No further work has been carried out, and the
walls and floors in the Neary part need immediate attention.

Although redwood was readily available from the Santa Cruz moun-
tains and could have, therefore, been used to shingle the roof, auxiliary
buildings of this type commonly had thatched roofs and it can be assumed
that this was the case with the guardhouse. Presently, the Neary portion
has a wood shingled roof and the Hopcroft side has an asphalt one.

The fact that it, of the twenty or so that existed at the time of
secularization, still stands, the only building of the mission complex
to withstand flood, inclement weather and earthquakes, attests to its
structural integrity.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Once part of Mision La Exaltacion de la Santa Cruz, the Neary-Hop-+
croft Adobe is the oldest and most historic structure in Santa Cruz
and the only one remaining from the original mission complex. Although
the actual date of its construction is unknown, local historians agree
that it was built circa 1810, when the mission was its most prosperous.
It is also generally agreed that the adobe (really a duplex) served as
the mission guardhouse, with the commander of the guard and his family
in one side and his subordinates housed in the other.

The first occupants of the building were Narcisso Berreyessa and
his wife, both of whom were children of soldiers who came to California
with Anza. Berreyessa served as commander of the guard from 1812 to 1816.
Following secularization, half of the adobe was purchased by Felipe Armas,
the first justice of the peace for Santa Cruz when California became a
state. He sold his portion of the adobe to Patrick Neary in 1865, and
the Neary family remained there until the State of California purchased
the building in 1957. At the time that Armas purchased his half, the
other half was acquired by locally prominent land grantees, the Rodri-
guez family. A foster descendant, Mrs. Cornelia Hopcroft, presently
occupies this half and was given life tenancy at the time the state
purchased it.

The Neary-Hopcroft Adobe, therefore, has been continuously occupied
through the Spanish, Mexican, California Republic and American periods
of California history, and is the only guardhouse attached to the mis-
sions of California that remains structurally intact.
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